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TO:  Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen 

FROM: James S. Pineo - Town Manager 

CC:  Chief Zotti 

DATE: July 13, 2023 

RE:  Ambulance Contract 

 

 

The recent bid opening for Ambulance Service resulted in two bidders providing proposals for 

service which range from $300,000 for a single ambulance, with very ridged contract stipulations 

of significant concerns, to $1,472,000 for two fully staffed ambulances, equivalent to the service 

provided today.  Bids are outlined in the below spreadsheet.  The incumbent service did not bid 

on the contract. 

 

 
 

The options provided by venders create several questions which led to asking the Board of 

Selectmen to authorize staff to pursue the costs for transitioning from contracted ambulance 

services to Fire-Based Ambulance Services.  The timing of this is problematic with the 

renovation and expansion of the Public Safety Building combined with the onboarding of said 

debt.  The PSB has been designed in a way to take on Fire-Based Ambulance Services.  Phase I 

of this project is anticipated to be completed in the March 2024 timeframe, allowing for 

increased staffing proposed increases to staffing and equipment. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Using the 2023 operating budget as a template with the assumption that one (1) Firefighter/EMT 

is scheduled to be hired in April 2024.  The buildout budget assumptions are based on hiring 

three additional Firefighter/EMT’s April 2024.  This would bring the Fire Department staffing 

level to a total of 18 fulltime employees, breakdown of staffing is shown below.   

 

 
 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

Should the Town pursue Fire-Based Ambulance Services with the proposed staffing there would 

be obvious impacts to the operating budget.  The 2024 impact reflects increased staffing levels 

for 39 weeks and a transition to Fire Based Ambulance Services beginning on or around May 1, 

2024.  An additional increase to the 2024 estimated operating budget includes four (4) months of 

contracted services with Stewarts Ambulance at $50,000 per month ($600,000 annualized).  This 

estimated operating budget contemplates the Town securing one (1) ambulance on or before 

January 1, 2024.  The following spreadsheet outlines what the budget impacts would likely be as 

compared to the 2023 operating budget and the $600,000 Ambulance option for the forecasted 

budgets.   The 2024-2027 estimated budget provides annual 3.5% wage adjustments and family 

plan health care with annual increases estimated at 5% per year.   

 

 

 
 

The projected operating budgets indicate Fire-Based 911 Ambulance Services being the better 

option for Wolfeboro, which was also indicated by Mr. Van Etten’s, Executive Chairman of 

Stewarts Ambulance, who states in his June 20, 2023 to the Board of Selectmen “I believe that 

the best EMS option for Wolfeboro - in terms of both quality and cost -is to have Wolfeboro Fire 

provide the primary 911 response.”  (attached) 

 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Should the Town want to pursue Fire-Based Ambulance Services there will be a revenue stream 

for services provided.  I have averaged the revenues from four similar communities.  The 

average of these communities in 2022 collected $459,751.   

 

 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

Based on the above anticipated revenues should the Town pursue Fire-Based Ambulance 

Services projected revenues for six months of operation in 2024 would be estimated at $228,375.   

Should the Town want to pursue Fire-Based Ambulance Services the previously outlined 

revenue stream will have a positive impact on operating costs as compared to contracted services 

outlined as follows: 

 

 
 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

The Town would need to secure two (2) ambulances to transition into Fire Based Ambulance 

Services.  It would be recommended that the Town secure a quality used ambulance outfitted 

through the existing Fire Trucks and Apparatus Capital Reserve Fund.  This fund has a current 

balance of $312,552 (attached), to be replaced in 2029.  It is further recommended that the lease 

purchase of a new ambulance be presented to the voters on the 2024 warrant, to be replaced in 

2034/2035.  This plan would create a 10-year rotation for ambulances.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

The 2009 Warrant creating the Fire Trucks & Apparatus Capital Reserve Fund states: 

 

Article 30: Establish New Fire Truck and Apparatus Replacement Capital 

Reserve Fund 

 

 To see if the Town will vote to establish a new Capital Reserve Fund 

under the provisions of RSA 31:1 for the purpose of purchasing fire trucks 

and apparatus, and to raise and appropriate the sum of seventy five 

thousand dollars ($75,000) to be placed in this fund, to be under the 

custody of the Trustees of Trust Funds and to designate the Board of 

Selectmen as agents to expend. 

 

 

The question should be asked if these funds can be used for the purpose of securing ambulance 

vehicles.  Merriam-Webster defines “Apparatus” as: 

 

 1A: A set of materials or equipment designed for a particular use. 

 1C: an instrument or appliance designed for a specific operation. 

 

 2A: the machinery of government. 

 

When this fund was established Fire-Based Ambulance services were not contemplated as an 

expenditure of these monies, today Fire-Based Ambulance services the usage of these Capital 

Reserve Funds does seem to fall within the fire department operations.   

 

This topic will be on the BOS agenda for August 2, 2023 at which time I am asking that the 

Board of Selectmen, in public session provide staff with a recommendation to further pursue 

Fire-Based Ambulance operations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 


